
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, MARCH 26, 2019 

Call to Order 

The Business Meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order at 
7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell; the Pledge of Allegiance led by 
Mr. Buckson. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
Jeffrey W. Hall 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 

There are seven (7) Commissioners present at Roll Call. 
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Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda made by Mr. Angel; seconded by Mr. Pepper; 
carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Consent Agenda 19-4 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial 
and will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Levy Court. There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in 
which event the items shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered separately under New Business. 

• Approval of Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes ofTuesday, 
March 19,2019 

• Items from March 19,2019 Committee Meetings: 
o Property & Casualty Insurance 
o Route 13 Force Main Rehabilitation-Easement Compensation & 

Land Lease 
o Paris Villa & London Village-Sewer Easement Compensation 
o State of Delaware-Aggregation of Electricity and Natural Gas 

Supply-MOA 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda 19-4 made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by 
Mr. Angel; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Employee of the Month -April 2019 

Lorri Tanaka read the following into the record: 

Kent County Department Heads have selected Margo Orlando from the Kent 
County Sheriffs Office as the April 2019 Employee of the Month. She started 
with Kent County in September 2008 and serves as Secretary in the Sheriffs 
Office. Her primary duties include processing court documents and related 
paperwork; answering incoming telephone calls; assisting with Sheriff Sales; and 
numerous other clerical duties. Prior to transferring to the Sheriffs Office in 
2015, she worked in the Personnel Office and in the Register of Wills Office. 
Current and previous supervisors report that Margo always exhibits enthusiasm 
and a positive attitude, making her a first-rate example of Kent County Levy 
Court's commitment to excellent customer service. She is an exemplary 
employee, performing her duties in a timely fashion and always willing to assist 
others. In keeping with her spirit of service, Margo teaches classes for children at 
her local church and has been a member of the Clayton Fire Department Ladies 
Auxiliary for years. According to Kent County Sheriff Brian Lewis, "Margo 
makes everyone in the office feel at home and welcomed, whether it is visitors to 
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the office or coworkers. She is always pleasant, a pleasure to be around and her 
spirit is delightful. She is a great asset to this department!" 

Congratulations Margo on a job well done! Margo resides in Commissioner 
Banta's and Pepper's Districts. 

Ms. Tanaka concluded by reading the tribute into the record. 

The Commissioners and County Administrator then asked Margo to join them at 
the front of the dais for presentation of the tribute, personal congratulations and 
remarks. Margo said a special thank you to her parents for instilling in her the 
fine work ethic she practices on a daily basis. Sheriff Brian Lewis and Deputy 
Sheriff Chris White added_ their presence and praise as well prior to 
commemorative photos being taken. 

Tribute to Albert W. (Bill) Holmes, Jr. 

The following was read into the record: 

Kent County Levy Court is privileged to present this Tribute to Albert W. 
Holmes, Jr. for his faithful service to the Regional Planning Commission. 

Serving more than 20 years, Albert W. Holmes, Jr. has exhibited a high degree of 
interest and concern for the important role in shaping Kent County's future, and 
for the vital work of the Regional Planning Commission. 

Albert W. Holmes, Jr. has contributed invaluable input into the County's goals to 
ensure a balanced land use that will accommodate growth, commerce and 
industry, employment and residential communities. 

It is with a great sense of esteem that Kent County levy Court extends its sincere 
appreciation to Albert W. Holmes, Jr. for his years of dedicated public service and 
extends heart Best Wishes to our Good Friend. 

A Resolution In Honor of Albert W. "Bill" Holmes, Jr. 

Whereas, Albert W. "Bill" Holmes, Jr., was appointed to serve on the Kent 
County Regional Planning Commission on February 14, 1995, representing the 
2nd Levy Court District and ultimately the entire County; and 

Whereas, Albert W. "Bill" Holmes, Jr., served honorably and with distinction as a 
member of the Kent County Regional Planning Commission for 24 years, from 
March of 1995 through February of2019; and 

Whereas, the Kent County Regional Planning Commission, the Kent County Levy 
Court, the Department of Planning Services, and the Citizens of Kent County 
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have benefited greatly from the dedicated leadership and expertise of Albert W. 
"Bill" Holmes, Jr. 

No, therefore be it resolved that, the Kent County Regional Planning Commission 
expresses its sincere appreciation to Albert W. "Bill" Holmes, Jr. for his unselfish 
dedication and contributions toward the betterment of Kent County, Delaware. 

Be it further resolved that, the Kent County Regional Planning Commission 
extends its warmest best wishes to Albert W. "Bill" Holmes, Jr. in all future 
endeavors. 

Mr. Banta invited Mr. Holmes and his wife Carmen to come to the front for 
presentation of the Tribute. Before the presentation was made Mr. Paul Davis 
and Mr. William Jester both took the opportunity to express their best regards and 
warmest wishes to Mr. Holmes. Each of the Commissioners and County 
Administrator then took a turn sharing a fond memory or thought with everyone. 
Mr. Jester then presented a Tribute on behalf of the Regional Planning 
Commission prior to the Levy Court presenting its' Tribute. Mr. Holmes 
expressed his thanks and appreciation to Commissioners Banta, Pepper, Angel, 
Buckson, Sweeney, Howell; past Commissioners Ron Smith, Brad Eaby and 
Jim Hosfelt, County Administrator Mike Petit de Mange, Planning Office Staff 
members and his fellow Commissioners he served with on the Regional Planning 
Commission. Commemorative photos were taken and handshakes were 
exchanged all around. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Allan Kujala advised the Commissioner the Director of Planning Services, Sarah 
Keifer would be introducing the new employee this evening. 

Ms. Keifer: Good evening Commissioners. It is my pleasure to introduce Robert 
Silvagni who joined our department March 11th as a Building Code Inspector I 
specializing in Code Enforcement. Most recently he worked at as a supervisor at 
the Home Depot and before making the move to Delaware spent 27 years as an 
officer for the Miami Beach Police Department. We're very, very pleased to have 
him on board, he's learning very quickly. He will be an asset to us. Robert 
currently resides in Sussex County. So welcome Robert. Do you have a few 
words? 

Mr. Silvagni: Mr. President, Commissions thank you so much for the opportunity 
to serve the County. I have three passions in my life: my family, my motorcycle 
and serving my community. Hopefully I get an opportunity to be celebrated as 
Margo was and hopefully not too long down the road as Bill was as well. Thank 
you very much for the opportunity. 
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Mr. Banta: Welcome aboard, Robert and hopefully you'll do a great job and 
we're glad to have you. Thank you. 

Mr. Silvagni: Thank you. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are being conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. 

Everyone will have a chance to speak. All statements are to be made from the 
podium at the front of the room. For the record, please give your name and 
address. Copies of any written statements or exhibits used during the hearing 
should be presented to for identification and inclusion in the record. 

For each application before the Levy Court: 

1. The President of Levy Court will introduce the application; 

2. The Levy Court will then receive testimony from those in favor; 

3. Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

4. After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the 
application will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it 
deems appropriate. 

Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting and a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the Regional 
Planning Commission. I would ask that the recommendation be included, by 
reference, in the permanent record of the meeting established by the Clerk of the 
Peace. 

The Public Notice of the Hearing was published in the March 8, 2019 edition of 
the Delaware State News. 

STORMWATER MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Resolution 3731, A Resolution to extend the Kent County Stormwater 

Maintenance District pursuant to Chapter 52, Title 9 of the Delaware Code 
and Section 90.4.E (10), Chapter 187 ofthe Kent County Code- Pickering 
Pointe 
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Ms. Keifer: The first item before the Levy Court tonight is Resolution 3 731 
adding Pickering Pointe Subdivision to the Stormwater Maintenance District. A 
majority of the lot owners have signed the petition to join the district in the 
affirmative and those signatures have been verified by our Staff. All of the 
repairs have been completed and inspected by the Kent Conservation District. 
The Operation Maintenance Plan has been finalized. The annual fee for the 
Stormwater Maintenance District as established in the FY2019 Budget is $28.00 
per parcel. Given that this is a partial year billing will actually commence in the 
fiscal year 20 tax bill in the amount of$43.00. This meets all of the criteria to 
join the district and Staff recommends approval. I'm happy to answer any 
questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Resolution 3731 

IN FAVOR 

Kimberly Hollowell, 113 Jogger Trail, Magnolia, DE: We agree to enter into the 
program. 

Mr. Banta: Good, we appreciate your time. Thank you very much. 

Ms. Hollowell: Thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION - None 

Public Hearing Closed on Resolution 3731 

Mr. Sweeney: Finding that the proposed stormwater maintenance district 
expansion is adequate and appropriate; that all the property owners in the district 
are benefitted directly or indirectly thereby; and that it is in the public interest to 
extend the stormwater maintenance district in the manner proposed, I Move to 
approve Resolution 3 731 creating the Pickering Pointe Storm water Maintenance 
District; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Sweeney and no opposition. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hall: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated and it's a good program, the homeowners will 
benefit from it greatly. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for all the reasons stated. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Resolution 3731 has been approved. 

PETITIONS FOR CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Application #/Name: C-19-03 Chick-fil-A; Applicant/Owner: 

03/26/2019 

Ron DiFava, LLC I 5M Investors, LLC; Zoning District I Proposed Use: 
BG (General Business) I Fast Food Establishment (Permanent Food 
Truck); Area & Location I ID#: 1.2+ acres on the east side of S. DuPont 
Highway (US Rt. 13) and the west side of Palmer Rd., approx. 108ft. 
south ofVoshells Mill Star Hill Rd., east of Camden./ NM-00-094.15-04-
16.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: The next application before the Levy Court is C-19-03; this is a 
Conditional Use Application for a Fast Food Establishment. The site is 1.2 acres 
on the east side of Route 13, the west side of Palmer Road just south ofVoshells 
Mill east of Camden. It is located inside the Growth Zone and zoned BG. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony on the application at their March 
7th hearing and at their March 14th business meeting voted unanimously to 
recommend conditional approval. Among the conditions, one is to screen along 
the adjacent residential property and a second is to provide a traffic management 
plan showing, preventing access, vehicular access to Palmer Road. So again 
this comes with unanimous recommendation for approval. I'm happy to answer 
any question you might have. 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer as we discussed today there's a number of different 
methods for screening along the property so, this is kind of a U shaped property 
so the only screening that would have to be done is would be that square that's in 
the middle of the U, correct, or along Palmer Road? 

Ms. Keifer: Not necessarily along Palmer Road. But definitely along that U and 
we actually suggested, if you look at page 2, we suggested it wrap around a bit as 
well. 

Mr. Sweeney: So wrap around that whole property? 

Ms. Keifer: Not the entire ... but to block the view, yeah to block the view. 

Mr. Sweeney: Just the inside... And there was a recommendation for it to be 
vegetation however I'm in favor of some type of fencing. Is that something we 
can add to the conditional approval? 
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Ms. Keifer: Absolutely. I mean a condition could be .. .I mean it could be fencing 
with some additional landscaping just to soften the view and increase the height 
ofthe buffer. 

Mr. Sweeney: I'll talk to Mr. DiFava when he comes forward, thank you. 

Public Hearing Open on Application C-19-03 

IN FAVOR 

Ron DiFava, 4044 South DuPont Highway, Camden, DE: I just wanted to thank 
the Planning Commission and we went through the, you know the process and the 
procedures of what we plan on doing with the Food Truck. I'm here to answer 
other questions or concerns you may have and we can start with the fencing slash 
landscaping. Originally it was .. .I know it says in there 30 foot and to the north 
side so in my recollection it would be the back of that property and then coming 
up if you will on the left hand side to basically block the view. In the 
original ... talking ... we did talk about having it six foot high and fencing so I have 
absolutely no problem with doing that. 

Mr. Sweeney: What kind of fencing, Mr. DiFava, were you looking at? 

Mr. DiFava: I believe it said wood in the original when I was going ... originally 
trying to find out about this process with Mrs. Green I believe. But whether it 
would be vinyl, I mean that would probably look better honestly so I would be 
open... You know, really we want it to look esthetically pleasing so. 

Mr. Sweeney: So that would be my ask of you is that at least on the north side of 
the property and along the west side would be the six foot PVC vinyl fence and 
along the south side of the property would be more vegetation because the trailer 
or the truck is located to the north side of the property. And one of the comments 
during the RPC meeting was the people who walk through that property to get 
across the street to the shopping centers there which maybe, you know that 
fencing would help with that and your property as well. Get some wooden fences, 
they can be done very nicely and they can be done very cheaply but I'd prefer the 
PVC fencing. 

Mr. DiFava: Yeah, and I agree with you also. I just want to ... that was one ofthe 
things I want to be clear on. So where we have the green part is the Food Truck 
and then that plot that's a 100 by a 105' to a 100 so on the right side if you 
will that. .. there's trees and vegetation there not along the residential and then you 
have the 105' across the back and then the 100'. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right, so it would be not the side with the vegetation already there, 
not there but on the other side the 1 05' and then the 1 00'. 
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Mr. DiFava: Got it, thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: Little bit overcooking, I just want to be clear or understand it. 
Given the proximity to the development and the larger development that's all 
around there and there's *INAUDIBLE* which is okay, it's perfectly fine and 
now you're putting the Chick-fil-A Truck there some kind of access I think would 
be a good idea versus a bad idea. That's about as far as I want to overcook you 
but I think gaining access to your property to utilize your trailer or truck or 
maintaining a path you know across, I mean you have the Waffle House right 
there, they don't have a fence or anything like that do they? And they're right 
next door, correct? And the place down, just further to the south doesn't have a 
fence. I'm not against a fence I just would be concerned with... Just think about 
it, alright and I'll do whatever you want. 

Mr. Sweeney: My concern only is for that residents and buffering that. Along 
Palmer Road there is no fence. 

Mr. Buckson: Right there where the ... waters going to, you know the traffic's 
going to come to the path ... they already, they can use Palmer Road right now the 
folks that live there instead they walk through that area to come across, which is 
okay. Again I'm just suggesting that if you're not blocking it off fine, if your 
intent is to block it off I just threw that out there as a cautionary mention. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yeah, I don't want to block off Palmer Road. 

Mr. Buckson: Well then let's move on. 

Mr. Sweeney: One more question. So there were three conditions. One was the 
letter of no objection from DelDOT, have you received that yet? 

Mr. DiFava: No, Mr. Wright was supposed to get to me. They have no issues. In 
the planning that entrance there that's kind of on this property that also services 
the Waffle House? At some point that entrance is supposed to move back, I guess 
it would be south because it's really, I guess when they sold and they split up that 
land, when they did the long lease with the Waffle House and the other at some 
point that is going to have to move back it's so close to that light. But right now 
basically he was, that they would look at it a year out and you know see if we plan 
on being there, how things are going before anyone has to make an investment to 
do that. Otherwise when I met with them everything was good, they were happy 
with all of the traffic, you know less left turns, they went into lots of statistics and 
he says he's just figuring out as far as getting me the approval letter so that if we 
get the recommendation we can move forward. 

Mr. Sweeney: And the second condition was the screen which we've already 
discussed. Then I'm assuming as part ofthe letter from DelDOT the Traffic 
Management Plan is all part of that over the next year. 
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Mr. DiFava: Yes, that's correct and there's no access anything from the road in 
the back, Palmer. 

Mr. Sweeney: Just real quick. Ms. Keifer, that third one the Traffic Management 
Plan prior to opening the business doesn't sound like what DelDOT is asking for. 
They're going to let him operate and then see how things go. Is that what you're 
hearing? 

Ms. Keifer: We can certainly defer to DelDOT. Staff's original thought was we 
didn't want to encourage vehicular traffic so an obstacle of some point, bollards 
or whatever to block vehicles not necessarily pedestrians wouldn't be a bad idea. 
But I don't know that DelDOT has looked at that. I haven't had conversations 
with them. 

Mr. Sweeney: So do we really want to make this a requirement of him opening 
his business, to have the Traffic Management Plan if they're not planning on 
doing anything for up to a year after he's already in business? 

Ms. Keifer: Well what I'm hearing is that they're not...they're going to evaluate 
the primary, the actual entrance off of the highway over the next year. I don't 
know if Palmer Road was part of the discussion or not. But ultimately it's at the 
Levy Court's discretion at this point. 

Mr. Pepper: Just a couple ofthings. You, by doing this, you'd be the first one in 
Kent County to be doing anything similar or anything close to this? 

Mr. DiFava: I would say so. I mean one of the normal, you know some food 
trucks obviously if they operate they come and go. We've operated for three 
years. We've done the Fair, we've done Fifer's, you know lots of different events 
but most of those happen on a Saturday or a Friday and then all of the other days 
obviously we have the truck but we haven't had the right location to keep it. So 
to answer your question I believe we would be, yes sir. 

Mr. Pepper: Okay, great, great. I wish you the best ofluck. The only thing I 
would caution is you're setting precedence with this and you'll be setting the 
standard for anybody else that comes down the road and wants to do something 
similar so all of us up here on Levy Court and in the County appreciate you 
making this class. I have no doubt that you will anything but make it first class by 
seeing your other store down in Camden. So those are the only two things I 
would be concerned with. Just setting the precedence and we don't want someone 
else come in and say, well, they're' not doing this or they did this, so. We look 
forward to you being a success, appreciate it. Good luck. 

Mr. DiFava: Appreciate, thank you. 
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Mr. Angel: I have one question. In here I was reading on the background it's 
only, the food truck will only sell food during lunch hours on weekdays but 
you're going to be open longer than Saturdays, too correct because you don't do 
Sundays? 

Mr. DiFava: Correct, definitely not Sunday. And originally we talked about the 
day parts would be basically during the peak traffic time. So in the morning it 
would be 7 to 9 then it would be lunch time 11 to 1, that is what we spoke about 
in the ... when I was asked the questions in the Planning Commission. 

Mr. Angel: Okay because I'mjust reading what's in my .. .itjust says lunch 
hours, weekdays. But you're going to be open for breakfast too then? 

Mr. DiFava: That was the thought with the traffic pattern, everyone going so they 
could get in and out, yes sir. 

Mr. Angel: I just wanted to make sure we're on the same page, thank you. 

Mr. DiFava: Yes sir. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed On Application C-19-03 

Mr. Sweeney: I Move to approve to C-19-03 with the following 
recommendations and conditions. First of all, a letter of no objection from the 
Delaware Department of Transportation and Department of Public Health shall be 
submitted prior to opening for businesses. In accordance with subsection 205-
224(A) (3) screening is required from the residential lot to be in the form of six 
foot vinyl fencing and vegetation along the northern and western border of the 
adjoining residential lot and to continue with the vegetation on the southern 
border of the residential lot. A Traffic Management Plan shall be provided prior 
to opening the business to ensure that there is no vehicular access to the subject 
site via Palmer Road, however foot traffic from Palmer Road is accepted. Also, 
based on Staff recommendation as well as the RPC recommendation for approval; 
seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Sweeney and no opposition. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hall: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 
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Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, per the motion and reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for reasons stated in the motion by Mr. Sweeney, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application C-19-03 has been approved. 

PETITIONS FOR CONDITIONAL USE 
REQUIRING SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Application #/Name: CS-19-01 Loganberry Village; Applicant/Owner: 

REYCO, LLC c/o Brian Reynolds, Managing Partner; Zoning 
District/Proposed Use: AR/Public Utility (Underground Propane Field); 
Area & Location/ID#: 59.695 acres+ (Easement Area: 9,932 SF) located 
on the east side of Barney Jenkins Rd. (Rd. 370), approx. 1,100 ft. south of 
Walnut Shade Rd. (DE Rt. lOA), southeast of Woodside I NM-00-111.02-
10-97.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: The next application is CS-19-0 1. This is a Conditional Use Site 
Plan for a Public Utility Underground Propane Field. The site itself is just under 
10,000 square feet. It's located in open space within the Loganberry Village 
subdivision. The site is zone AR/ Agricultural Residential. It is inside the Growth 
Zone. The Regional Planning Commission took testimony on the application at 
their January 3rd hearing and their March 141

h business meeting voted to 
recommend denial siting concerns primarily related to the water table and the 
installation of the tanks and the overall public safety. I'm happy to answer any 
questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on CS-19-01 

IN FAVOR 

Tim Metzner, Davis, Bowen & Friedel, 1 Park A venue, Milford, DE: Thank you 
Commissioners, thank you chairmen ... President. I'm also here with the 
representative from the propane company, if you guys have any questions he can 
be sworn in as well. I'm representing this application on behalf of the landowners 
REYCO, LLC and requesting Levy Court's Conditional Site Plan approval. The 
existing and proposed zoning for the site is AR. Parcels located within the Kent 
County Growth Zone, majority of the land is currently wooded with some tilled 
areas around the perimeter. The site is located, as Ms. Keifer mentioned is 
located in the central pass of open space area within the previously approved 
Loganberry Village. We are proposing an Underground Community Propane 
Tank Field with an access drive which will consist oftwelve (12) 1,000 gallon 
underground propane tanks. The propane field will be fenced in with a 6' high 
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chain link fence that will have a 12' wide swing gate and a six foot wide 
pedestrian gate. The proposed site meets the County's bulk utility standards, 
specifically requiring for the setbacks ... the required setbacks, which is to 
maintain a 100' setback from any parcel line and 200' ... a minimum of200' ... a 
200' setback from a residential dwelling setback line. This has limited the 
propane tank to one location within the development and that's currently as it's 
shown right now. There's one site access proposed adjacent to proposed Lot 114 
right off Currant Circle which that will be a DelDOT maintained subdivision 
street. The access road will be 12' wide and be paved. There's no water or sewer 
service needed for this site. The proposed ... I'm sorry the site is proposing to 
clear approximately 7,796 square feet of trees however we are proposing 9,516 
square feet of dedicated tree mitigation on the same parcel within that open space 
therefore adding an additional 1, 720 square feet of dedicated forested area to this 
parcel. The site access and propane field will be within a dedicated easement to 
the utility company and will be the responsibility of the utility company for 
perpetual long term maintenance. We are requesting that this application ... with 
this application one waiver from the Kent County code specifically section 187-
78(B) which prohibits building structures and paved surfaces constructed closer 
than 1 00' to a blue line stream. As I mentioned the site is limited to this one spot 
and due to the bulk utility standards we're encroaching inside that 1 00' blue line 
stream setback by the greatest distance of 12' ... or 12.8' at the southwest comer of 
to 114. In total approximately 2,406 square feet of this paved access drive 
encroaches into that setback. We concur with all the code requirements and Staff 
recommendations that were provided in the Planning Staff report. There were a 
couple concerns that were brought up during the RPC hearing that we would like 
to address. The motion to deny as Ms. Keifer had mentioned was due to a lack of 
some information provided but also some concerns with the site and with 
this ... with the use. Specific concerns were for further geo tech soil investigation 
for the site for ground water levels, how the tanks would be secured or designed 
with the high ground water, construction cost estimate to extend natural gas to the 
site as an option and also what the Public Service Commission does and does not 
have control over in regards to propane service. The Public Service Commission 
does administer the Nation Gas Pipeline Safety Program for the US Department 
ofT ransportation' s Office of Pipeline Safety. This relates to both operation of, 
I'm sorry both operation of both propane and natural gas distribution systems. If 
any tank serves over 10 homes then the propane utilities distribution lines are 
regulated by the Public Service Commission for the same safety standards as 
natural gas. This development has 153 homes which means the Public Service 
Commission will regulate the distribution lines for safety. The setbacks, another 
concern was for the underground tanks and the setbacks for that are per the bulk 
utility standards for the field itself, for the propane field itself. The Public Service 
Commission does not regulate the cost charged by propane gas providers. Prior to 
the RPC hearing I was advised that ifthere's complaints that were issued to the 
public ... or from the public to the Public Service Commission for rates then the 
Public Service Commission could issue a complaint to the propane company so 
my understanding at the time was that was how the cost were regulated. However 
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stated, just stated that the Public Service Commission does not regulate the actual 
cost. Regarding the soil, geo tech soil investigations this was performed ... or this 
is typically performed during the engineering phase after approval and is done 
typically this way for all land use applications. We do have geo tech soil borings 
for the storm water ponds throughout ... both ponds throughout the site and then 
also road borings around all the proposed roads. All the borings have similar 
depths to ground water encounter throughout the site which was about six feet 
deep, seasonal high water table was encountered about five feet ... about five and a 
half feet deep. Prior to the beginning of any of the structural design the geo tech 
investigation would determine this along with the soil types which then would go 
into the design for the structural engineering portion. We know this site has ... this 
site and this area has high ground water elevation. This propane company has 
multiple underground tanks throughout the State where high ground water exists 
and this is common ... high ground water is common for our State. I have a couple 
of items of literature, one from FEMA and the other from the EPA which state 
how to secure the underground tanks where ground water is above the tank or at 
the tank elevation. So once we have the geo tech investigation then the structural 
engineer will design the anchoring system to prevent the flotation. Similar 
calculations ... We also ... also have calculations that were done for the similar 
application from the manufacturer for the structural engineering portion. So it's 
not the calculations that were done for this particular site because we haven't 
gotten the geo tech borings done yet for it but it is very similar and would be the 
ideal application as far as what would have to be provided in order to construct. I 
have all these ... the FEMA, EPA and also the structural calculations if 
anybody ... bring it into the record. I don't know if you guys want to look at them, 
advise. While that's getting passed out, lastly the RPC requested a cost estimate 
to be acquired to extend the natural gas to the site. We did reach out to 
Chesapeake Utilities and was advised the nearest location was at Poly Tech High 
School which is just over Y4 mile from this site. We asked for a preliminary cost 
estimate and was advised that they would need to issue a "will serve" letter and 
then could begin the market analysis and the feasibility study for the project and 
obviously the owner was not willing to get a "will serve" letter issued because 
they are looking at doing other means of energy then natural gas. One of the 
concerns that was brought up too was that the homeowners would be locked into 
this service. That's obviously a concern. One of the things that's seen with the 
natural gas is that if you don't like your gas service you can convert your utilities 
to electric so there is the option of that. So this falls under the same kind of 
guidelines as the gas services if you're not .. .if you don't want to use gas then you 
can use electric services. I would at this time .. .if representative Mike ... 

Michael Schaffer, Poore's Propane, 403 Addix Avenue, Greenwood, DE: 
Everything that he said I totally agree with. I'm just kind of here if you guys have 
any technical questions about the propane tanks and how they're anchored or any 
thoughts about that I'm happy to answer. 
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Mr. Angel: I have a housing development that has a unique issue where they are 
serviced by propane. The big issue for me for this kind of service is safety. 
Based on what I have experienced with them due to our County code the line 
doesn't have to be buried but, I think it is six inches, Sarah, in the ground? And 
it's been hit twice by people wanting to put brushes ... bushes and trees in their 
yard so it disconnected the whole line of service to those residence so I'm 
definitely not in favor of lines ... 

Mr. Schaffer: Well let me tell you what NFP A National Pipeline for propane. 
Mains are supposed to minimum 30" deep, services minimum 24" deep. Now 
I'm not saying that we bury them at 30". The developer says this is great, we put 
them in at 30" and somebody comes in and takes 3 or 4" off, I'm not saying that 
doesn't happen. But what you said, 6" deep should never happen. 

Mr. Angel: Well like I said ... 

Mr. Schaffer: Oh I believe you I'm just saying it's not supposed to be that way. 

Mr. Angel: That would be my reason for denial because 6" ... 

Mr. Schaffer: No its' unsafe, totally, agreed. And ifwe ever. .. we have 26 of 
these centralized systems that are taken care of by the Public Service Commission 
and if we would ever find a line that somehow that much soil got pulled off our 
lines we would go down and dig and dig them in deeper. We don't want them 
that shallow for safety reasons. And the Public Service Commission would allow 
us, if it ever came to light that we had one that shallow they wouldn't allow us to 
leave it that way. 

Mr. Angel: Well the other thing is too, it is one service so everybody has to 
sign on to the one service. That is a ... somebody may want a different service to 
get a better rate so ... 

Mr. Schaffer: I can only speak for Poore's; I can't speak for the development 
you're talking about. So typically in every account that I'm aware of let's just say 
you have Poore's Propane, a separate tank in your yard and someone else has a 
centralized system for Poore's. We typically run .20 per gallon less for the 
centralized system instead of the separate tank because our overhead is so much 
less on a centralized system. Occasionally I'll get a phone call, somebody fussing 
about their gas rates so my typical thing is, I'll say, you call around to local gas 
companies in our area, tell them what you have, heat, hot water, whatever it may 
be and ask them what their going rate is today. And I say if we have a price 
problem I want you to call me back. They never call me back. So I feel safe to 
say that's not going to be an issue for us. 



16 03/26/2019 

Mr. Angel: What about the possibility of the line getting interrupted with all the 
lines that are on ... that feed those houses? Is there a safety feature to shut off so it 
doesn't hurt those during the winter time for heat or ... 

Mr. Schaffer: So every service has a safety shutoff going to each and every 
house. If someone was out there digging in their yard and they hit that line it's 
going to shut that particular line off. Obviously we send out our customers all 
kinds of safety stuff all the time, who to call, where to call, the numbers to call, 
people on call, 24/7. So for the last at least 7 years that I can recall we've never 
had a main pipeline hit to shut a whole system down. We've had services hit that 
would only take care of; you know just one particular house not the whole 
development. 

Mr. Angel: Alright, you've given me something to think about. Thank you. 

Mr. Schaffer: You're welcome, thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Metzner, the PSC legislates or oversees the safety of these 
types of installations. 

Mr. Schaffer: That's right. 

Mr. Metzner: Yes, that's correct. 

Mr. Sweeney: Do they provide instruction after its partially started to make sure 
that you're meeting any other requirements to anchor or anything like that? 

Mr. Schaffer: We have constant inspections by the Public Service Commission, 
they'll... they want to come out and look at it while it's being put in. We have 
leak surveys, meaning, which we do not do in-house we hire out with someone 
else and they go along and they probe the ground where the lines are to make sure 
no gas is getting out. We have ... I have to meet with the inspector in this area and 
we walk the development pretty much every foot of the development at least once 
a year and sometimes twice a year. 

Mr. Sweeney: Thank you. Mr. Metzner are you aware of how the Loganberry 
developments being provided with water? 

Mr. Metzner: Tidewater. 

Mr. Sweeney: So those families, those houses all have to go with Tidewater? 
They have no opportunity to put in their own well, get a different ... Artesian, 
nothing they have to go with Tidewater? 

Mr. Metzner: That's correct. The CPCN for that parcel is for Tidewater. 
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Mr. Sweeney: And there is no such thing as a CPCN for propane or natural gas or 
anything like that? 

Mr. Metzner: Not to my knowledge. 

Mr. Sweeney: So this is a 12,000 gallon facility and a 159 homes? 

Mr. Metzner: 153. 

Mr. Sweeney: 153 homes. How often will that 12,000 gallons need to be topped 
off? 

Mr. Schaffer: Typically in our other installations during the middle of the 
winter. .. and I'm not so sure yet that it's been determined that every one of these 
houses is going to have gas heat. But let's assume that they do. Typically it's a 
once a week fill up, top off. 

Mr. Sweeney: So it's not like two trucks a day or ... 

Mr. Schaffer: Oh, no, no, nothing like that. And we do it during the day we're 
not going to go in there in the middle of the night and wake people up. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. Mr. Metzner you mentioned the variance of the waiver for 
being within a 100' of the blue line stream. How close to the blue line stream? 
You told us how wide the road's going to be, you're going inside the 100' ... so 
how much inside the 100'? 

Mr. Metzner: So we're encroaching inside the ... we're encroaching inside that 
distance .. .inside that setback by 12.8' at its farthest distance so we're at 91.2' feet 
away from the blue line stream. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. That's all the questions I had. Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: Mine will be pretty quick; the presentation was pretty clear. So if I 
owned a house in this development then I would want to know, while there's a lot 
oftanks I'm worried about blowing up because I just don't know any better. And 
the reality is that's not really a reality. Explain that to why that would not just 
really be a normal thing that could occur at all. 

Mr. Schaffer: I know that I've been doing this for over 20 years and we've never, 
Poore's and the other company I use to work for before, have never had any kind 
of tanks blowing up. And typically when you bury a tank even if a tank was to 
leak and was to catch fire, which I don't recall any in my 20 year, but even if it 
did it's only going to burn right there, it's not going to explode because the tank is 
actually in the ground. Above ground tanks, they call that bleving and yes it's a 
possibility but I don't even think it's a possibility with an underground tank. 
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Mr. Buckson: What would be a typical environmental concern, if there was one 
in your 20 years that someone living there or around that area might have? 

Mr. Schaffer: Really there's nothing that I can think of. I have a propane tank in 
my yard. I don't know how many of you folks might have them. The steel that 
they're made from is super thick. There's what they call an anode bag which is 
kind of a sacrificial piece of metal that you attach to the tank so that the ground 
will eat at that sacrificial anode instead of eating at that tank. And we were 
talking about the Public Service Commission inspections? That's one of the 
things we have to do every year is test those anode bags to make sure that they're 
still protecting that tank and if they're not protecting then we have to put new in. 

Mr. Buckson: Having a conversation about the ... with the Staff about the 
approval of the development, the development is what it is, correct? 

Ms. Keifer: It is. It exists as a record plan. 

Mr. Buckson: So we're only making a decision on whether or not to allow this 
propane situation to occur. The questions I had were, are they in other areas of 
the State, the answer is yes. The question would then be, have they had any 
obvious problems, have there been any catastrophic problems that you're aware 
of, that you could cite or even minor problems that you could cite and the answer 
is, not really. And if there are there are safeguards in place to protect them. 

Mr. Schaffer: I agree with everything you just said. 

Mr. Buckson: Okay. Alright, that's good, thanks. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Metzner I just have one more question for you. So there were 
three questions that came up during the RPC that kind of guided the denial that 
was received. You responded to those tonight. In your opinion, would the 
answers that you provided tonight have been sufficient to gamer more positive 
votes out of the Regional Planning Committee? 

Mr. Metzner: I think two of the three, those being the CPCN, they wanted 
definitive answers on those and I believe that's what we gave tonight here. The 
other one was the ground water concerns and we didn't have any designs or any 
engineering structural concepts available so what I provided tonight is what the 
EP ... both the EPA, FEMA and then also a structural engineer prepared for a 
similar project for similar tanks. The other one about the Chesapeake proximity, I 
mean we didn't ... we didn't have ... we don't have an answer for that because you 
know, as I was stating they wanted to issue a "will serve" letter for the community 
and that was not the intention of the owner at this time, so prior to getting the 
market analysis and feasibility studies. 
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Mr. Pepper: Just one question, what made the developer decide to go with 
propane as opposed to electric or heat pumps or something along that line where 
there'd be little or no controversy whatsoever? 

Mr. Metzner: To my knowledge the owner wanted to go with the propane tank 
fields and so therefore that was ... they requested us to move forward with the 
application. 

IN OPPOSITION -None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application CS-19-01 

Mr. Sweeney: Just to preface this, keep in mind this was a denial from the 
Regional Planning Committee and will require a five member vote in the positive 
ifwe choose to override the RPC. So, I Move to approve Application CS-19-01 
Loganberry Village based on the recommended Staff approval, other options are 
not feasible for the subdivision which is a .. .it's not a low income but is a low 
value homes and I don't want to make it too expensive for them. Also to include 
the approval for waiver of Kent County code 187-78 subsection B allowing 
encroachment inside a 100' buffer of a blue line stream by 12.8'; seconded by 
Mr. Buckson. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: I'm going to approve this too based on the safety issue I addressed 
and the reasons stated by Commissioner Sweeney, I approve this. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Hall: Yes, based on Staff recommendations. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: No, because I think there's other reasonable alternatives other than 
this that I don't think were explored to my satisfaction. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, per my motion. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, per Commissioner Sweeney's motion. 

Roll Call reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) nay. Application CS-19-01 has been 
approved. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS CLOSED 

OLD BUSINESS - None 
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NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Hall: 
1. Appointment to the Board of Adjustment 

Motion to appoint Eric Crossan to the Board of Adjustment made by Mr. Hall; 
seconded by Mr. Pepper; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Mr. Pepper: 
1. Appointment to the Kent Economic Partnership 

Motion to appoint Shane Breakie to the Kent Economic Partnership made by 
Mr. Pepper; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Mr. Pepper: 
Move to go into Executive Session immediately following the Committee 
Meetings of April 2, 2019 for preliminary discussion on site acquisition for a 
publicly funded capital improvement; legal strategy session regarding collective 
bargaining or pending or potential litigation; and personnel matters pursuant to 
29 Del. C. 10004(b) (2), (4), and (9); seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by Roll 
Call vote reveals seven (7) yeas. 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

Mr. Sweeney: Last week on Thursday and Friday we had the opportunity to 
present Linus to Senator Carper and to WHYY, two great days, got a lot of photo 
opportunities and it was good for the book mobile. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS- None 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Mr. Buckson: I'm typically quiet around this time, expecting and anticipating 
getting out of here. But I want to take a moment to express a little bit of a 
concern and that concern is simple. It's been 12 years I've been on this Court and 
during that time I've enjoyed myself. The willingness from Commissioners and 
leadership to allow for ideas to pass forward and onto the kitchen table, the 
committee meetings, I've always *INAUDIBLE* I think it's what separates this 
government. And I'd hoped maybe in the next week or so to be having a 
discussion about something as benign as a charger station in a park. And 
unfortunately that didn't make it through leadership and the thing that I would 
caution or request or maybe just whine a little bit about is that I think that's what 
separates us. Our ability of seven Commissioners to sit at that table and say, you 
know, that's not really a good idea and let's kill it. Or six of us think it's' good 
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and let's move forward or heck let's have four of us move forward ... kill it ... go 
forward. So I would request maybe that ... well I don't need to request anything. I 
took the moment to express my disappointment with that situation, there were a 
few other situations but that's one that's just a nothing situation that probably 
should have gotten through in my opinion. Anyway, appreciate the time, thanks. 

Mr. Angel: Along those lines with Mr. Buckson, Mr. Buckson, myself and Mr. 
Petit de Mange were at a meeting for Open Gov and I'd like to see that brought 
forth and have them come back and explain to the whole board, the whole Levy 
Court this document would be a plus, being able to get in a nanosecond by 
pushing a button getting the data we need to do our jobs, to use technology to do 
it correctly and right and fast. The way we do it now, it takes time for them to 
research it and get it back to us and I just feel that this is a better way of operating 
government and I'd like to see it put on the agenda too. 

Mr. Sweeney: In response to Mr. Buckson I did ask Mr. Sheppard to continue to 
investigate the cost associated with the EV charging stations and have requested 
leadership to bring that forward to a committee meeting period. So we're going 
to see it. I know that Jeremy's looking into it. 

Mr. Buckson: To be clear, I'm not convinced, I'm in favor of it. But I was 
convinced that I shouldn't sit it down and bury it, that's what I was convinced of. 

Mr. Sweeney: And as far as the Open Gov from what I understand, Mr. Angel, 
there is a question on the procurement laws that we have to follow. We can't just 
bring a company in and say, go do this for us, without going through the process 
of a request for information or a request for a proposal, either one if we choose to 
go in that direction. So if Open Gov comes in and sits at that table with us they 
will be precluded from bidding on any kind of *INAUDIBLE* that goes out, 
that's State law and that's County law. So do we really want to bring them in and 
have the opportunity ... because they will not be able to bid if they come in and tell 
us how to do things and then ... 

Mr. Angel: Well all I know is two of the Commissioners and the Administrator, 
we liked the idea so let's go to RFI, let's get the process started so we can start it 
moving to find out who's out there who can do it. 

Mr. Sweeney: I agree, I agree with the RFI but not bring the Open Gov in ... 

Mr. Angel: I stand corrected ... I'm just tired of having being told we can't do it 
because I'm too busy or whatever. Let's get moving and stop snowballing. 

Mr. Sweeney: Don't let the tail wag the dog. We'll go through the process ... 
Mr. Buckson's in favor of it, I'll talk to Mr. Hall about it since he's the Chair of 
the Finance and see if we can't get that moving. Thank you. 
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Mr. Angel: Sorry, if Chris and Sarah can hold back. I had a call just before I 
came to Levy Court tonight that concerns you so if I could talk to you real quick 
after we adjourn. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: I just wanted to follow up on what Commissioner Sweeney 
just said. Actually IT is the Admin Department, I know you're Chair for IT 
things but you know if we're looking for information systems and how they work 
and everything I think we work through Kim Crouch and her department and ask 
her to structure the information that would be helpful to educate us on the matter. 

Mr. Sweeney: That would be excellent. And just as a caveat to that I was with 
the Delaware Department of Technology and Information when the State brought 
in SAP as the financial management for payroll, for all things financial for the 
State. They dumped $60 billion into SAP and then threw it out and that was like 
an eight year process. We don't want that. $60 million, $60 million they dumped 
into that and then threw it out and went with People Soft. So I don't want that, 
that's why I think an RFI is an excellent way to go to make sure we get what we 
want, it will work with Susan's system the way she has it without a lot of major 
changes, the way she does her job and obviously does it very well or else we 
wouldn't be in the position we're in. 

Mr. Angel: That just brought up another question. I had forgot about it. On the 
backbumer a year ago I brought back to Levy Court Cyber Security that NACo 
*INAUDIBLE* and I asked our Staff, Jody and our IT Department to look into it. 
We haven't moved forth in a year. I ran into this gentleman who's a mayor in 
New York, one ofthe cities in New York and he was asking me about it so I can 
hope we can get the data or get him here and discuss it because this is a NACo 
incentive that saves Counties money. And there is a buy in plan to a certain level, 
yes but not the initial so I just want to make sure we can move forth on that too. 

Motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Angel; seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried 
by Roll Call vote six ( 6) yeas; one ( 1) absent. 8:31 p.m. 

~~l!&c. 
Trish Brown 
Kent County Deputy Clerk of the Peace 


